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 ST. CATHARINES 

St. Catharines (2011 population 131,400; metropolitan population 392,184) is the largest city in Canada's  Niagara 
Region and the sixth largest urban area in Ontario, with 96.11 square kilometres of land. It lies in Southern Ontario, 
51 kilometres (32 mi) south of Toronto across Lake Ontario, and is 19 kilometres (12 mi) inland from the 
international boundary with the United States along the Niagara River. It is the northern entrance of the Welland 
Canal. Residents of St. Catharines are known as St. Cathariners. 

St. Catharines carries the official nickname "The Garden City" due to its 1,000 acres (4 km2) of parks, gardens and 
trails. 

St. Catharines is situated in an area for commerce and trade since it is located between the Greater Toronto 
Area (GTA) and the Fort Erie - US Border. Manufacturing is the city's dominant industry, as noted by the heraldic 
motto, "Industry and Liberality".  General Motors of Canada, Ltd., the Canadian subsidiary of General Motors, was 
the city's largest employer, a distinction now held by the District School Board of Niagara. TRW 
Automotive operates a plant in the city, though in recent years employment there has shifted from heavy industry 
and manufacturing to services. 

The city was first settled by Loyalists in the 1780s. The Crown granted them land in compensation for their services 
and for losses in the United States. Early histories credit Sergeant Jacob Dittrick and Private John Hainer, formerly 
of Butler's Rangers, as among the first to come to the area. They took their Crown Patents where Dick’s Creek and 
12 Mile Creek merge, now the city centre of St. Catharines. Although never documented, some local St. Catharines 
historians speculate that Dick’s Creek was named after Richard Pierpoint, a Black Loyalist and former American 
slave. Secondary to water routes, native trails provided transportation networks, resulting in the present-day radial 
road pattern from the City centre. The surrounding land was surveyed and Townships created between 1787 and 
1789. 

After the Butler’s Rangers disbanded in 1784 and settled the area, Duncan Murray as a former Quartermaster in 
the 84th Regiment of Foot (Royal Highland Emigrants) was appointed by the Crown to distribute free Government 
supplies (victuals) for 2 years to the resettled Loyalists.  He did this from his mill, built on the 12 Mile Creek 
in Power Glen. After his death in 1786, his holdings were forfeited to merchant Robert Hamilton of Queenston. 

Hamilton tried to operate for profit the already well-established Murray’s Distribution Centre and Mill under the 
management of his cousin. Among other ventures, Hamilton became land wealthy, expropriating lands from 
subsistence Loyalist settlers who were incapable of settling their debts.  Murray’s distribution centre, later 
Hamilton’s warehouse, and its location have long been a mystery. Hamilton’s major profits were derived from 
transhipping supplies for the military and civic establishments from his Queenston enterprise, not from charitably 
supplying the subsistence Loyalist settlers. Hamilton lacked interest in social development[7] and sold his business 
to Jesse Thompson before the turn of the 18th century. 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The small settlement was known as “The Twelve” and as “Murray’s District” to military and civic officials, but the 
local residents in 1796 and earlier referred to it as St. Catharines.  This is confirmed in St. Catharines’ first history, 
written by J.P. Merritt: “to be historically accurate the name St. Catharines preceded all of these….” 

The Merritt family arrived after this time, among the later Loyalists to relocate following the American Revolution. 
They were from the Carolinas, New York state and New Brunswick. In 1796, Thomas Merritt arrived to build on his 
relationship with his former Commander and Queen's Ranger, John Graves Simcoe, now the Lieutenant Governor of 
Upper Canada.  

At an unknown early date, an inn was built by Thomas Adams on the east side of what is now Ontario Street. It 
became a community meeting place, election centre, stagecoach stop, and mail delivery deposit. This was preceded 
by the church and a log school house completed before 1797,  all located on the east bank of the 12 Mile Creek at 
the extreme west end of what was known at that time as Main Street. This was an extension of the old Iroquois 
Trail and was renamed St. Paul Street by the settlers and descendant by the mid-19th century. Several mills, salt 
works, numerous retail outlets, a ship building yard, distillery and various other businesses were developed next. 

The first Welland Canal was constructed from 1824 to 1833 behind what is now known as St. Paul Street, using 
Twelve Mile and Dick's Creek. William Hamilton Merritt worked to promote the ambitious venture, both by raising 
funds and by enlisting government support. The canal established St. Catharines as the hub of commerce and 
industry for the Niagara Peninsula. 

Merritt also played a role in making St. Catharines a center of abolitionist activity. In 1855, the British Methodist 
Episcopal Church, Salem Chapel was established at the corner of Geneva and North streets, on land granted to the 
congregation by Merritt in the early 1840s. The area became known to refugee slaves from the United States as a 
place of "refuge and rest"; it was a destination, one of the final stops in Canada on the Underground Railroad for 
refugee African-American slaves. By the mid-1850s the town's population was about 6000, 800 of whom were "of 
African descent".  St. Catharines remains an important place in Black Canadian history. 

The Town of St. Catharines was incorporated in 1845. St. Catharines was incorporated as a city in 1876. 
 
Major Parks: 

 Montebello Park - Designed by Frederick Law Olmsted in 1887, who was renowned for designing and 
developing New York City's Central Park in 1853. A commemorative rose garden, with over 1,300 bushes in 25 
varieties, is the city's largest rose collection; it features an ornamental fountain. The focal point of the park is a 
band shell and pavilion built in 1888. The park is designated under the Ontario Heritage Act. 

 Lakeside Park — Located in the North end, along the shores of Lake Ontario in the community known as Port 
Dalhousie. Hosts yearly fireworks displays on 1 July (Canada Day).  Has picnic areas, a pavilion, snack bar, change 
rooms, washrooms, playground equipment, boardwalk, the Lakeside Park Carousel, and public docks for visiting 
boaters. The beach offers magnificent sunset views over Lake Ontario. Lakeside Park inspired 
a song by Rush which describes the park itself and Neil Peart's memories there. 

 Burgoyne Woods — A 50-hectare (0.5 km2) wooded area and recreational park located near the Downtown 
core. It also contains a dog park and is the host of annual cross country races within the District School Board of 
Niagara (DSBN) and the Niagara Catholic District School Board (NCDSB) 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Happy Rolph’s Bird Sanctuary — A 6-hectare (0.06 km2) park on the shores of Lake Ontario in the community 
of Port Weller. It is home to hundreds of native and migratory birds and features an exotic collection of 
flowering rhododendrons. An onsite petting farm (containing horses, pigs, sheep, goats and llamas, as well as a 
donkey named 'Hoti'—'Don Quixote') is operated by the city from Victoria Day to Thanksgiving Weekend. A trail 
running throughout the park leads to a peaceful waterfront memorial to Canadian victims of the 9/11terrorist 
attacks. 

 Ontario Jaycee Gardens — Overlooking the Henley Rowing Course, this is the city's largest horticultural park with 
more than 8 hectares (0.08 km2) of meticulously landscaped gardens and flower displays. Among the displays is a 
beautiful memorial site dedicated to Kristen French. The park exists on land that once featured the Third Welland 
Canal. The former entrance to the canal can still be seen at the North-West end of the park. 

 Walker Arboretum — Located along the hillside of Rodman Hall and the Twelve Mile Creek below, the original 
owner of this estate was Thomas Rodman Merritt, son of William Hamilton Merritt. In the late 19th century, an 
English landscape designer named Samuel Richardson was hired by Merritt to tend the grounds. As a result, 
the arboretum is an extensive, rambling garden with rare conifers which benefit from an exceptional micro-
climate. It boasts one of the largest Chinese Empress trees in Canada. 

 Woodgale Park — Located along Glendale Avenue between Glenridge Avenue and the Pen Centre. Features wide 
open spaces, flowing fruit trees, rare birds, a soccer field and tennis courts. Also features a memorial to the 
original farm building on the north end of the park near Denis Morris Catholic High School. Locally known as 
Doug Hill Park, after a nearby resident who coached a number of baseball and tug of war teams in this area. 

 
Downtown: 

Numerous efforts have been made to improve the downtown; the restructuring of manufacturing resulted in a loss 
of jobs and retail businesses. In the early 21st century, city, university and private developers undertook several 
initiatives to revive downtown, related to urban design, clustering activities to attract people to the area as a 
destination from day through evening events. 

In 2006, city council approved converting one-way arteries through the city centre to allow for two-way traffic, to 
make it easier for people to make their way around the city to explore it. In terms of urban planning and use, two-
way traffic improves circulation within the area. The city wanted to improve downtown as a destination, rather than 
a place to pass through. The council also want to have downtown St. Catharines on the Wine Route, a driving tour of 
Niagara wineries and an Ontario Wine Council initiative to boost the number of visitors to the region's many 
wineries.  The Wine Route was modified to officially redirect winery goers through the downtown starting in 
2012.[16] The first phase of two-way traffic was completed in 2009, with St. Paul and King Streets being converted. 
The cost of the conversion was $3.5 million and was shared with Niagara Region.   In 2012, most observers concluded 
that the change had achieved its goals; it garnered national media attention.  

In 2009, $54 million in joint federal, provincial and municipal funding was announced for the construction of a 
performing arts centre in the city's core. Complementing the centre, which will feature concert, dance and film 
venues, will be Brock University's Marilyn I. Walker School of Fine and Performing Arts. The university planned to 
renovate the former Canada Hair Cloth Building to use for the school. It former industrial building is located behind 
St. Paul Street and next to the municipal performing arts centre.  

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In late 2011, city council approved moving forward with the construction of a new spectator facility to replace the 
crumbling Gatorade Garden City Complex, built in 1938. Council voted to build a U-shaped facility, which will be home 
to the Niagara IceDogs, an Ontario Hockey League team, and be able to host other events, such as concerts. It would 
have room for 4,500 to 5,300 spectators. The goal is to keep the cost of the facility at or below $50-million and to build 
it on a swath of land known locally as the lower level parking lot, located behind St. Paul Street and abutting Highway 
406.   Council's commitment to build the facility resulted in IceDogs' owner Bill Burke promising to sign a 20-year lease 
with the city after he threatened to move his team if the city chose not to build a new arena.  

The city has made other infrastructure improvements to the downtown. In January 2012, a new edition of the Carlisle 
Street Parking Garage opened. It was built to Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) standards and 
was certified for its environmentally friendly features, including a green roof, preferred carpool and hybrid vehicle 
parking, greywater collection, permeable interlocking brick pavement, and several bike racks for users. A mixed-use 
development, the structure was planned for retail space at street level on Carlisle Street, in order to promote activity 
and business on the street. The project cost $27.9 million, with funding split three ways between the federal, 
provincial and municipal governments.[22] 

More retailers have located in downtown, resulting in a lower vacancy rate. The progress of the city has attracted 
positive press coverage, including a documentary by journalist Paul Hunter that aired on CBC Television's The 
National newscast on 16 November 2011. 

Education: 
St. Catharines is home to Brock University (established 1964), a modern comprehensive university located on the 
Niagara Escarpment. A partnership between the university and the Ontario Grape and Wine Industry established the 
city as a centre for cool-climate grape and wine research. Brock offers an Honours Bachelor of Science in Oenology and 
Viticulture. 

Concordia Lutheran Theological Seminary, a post graduate institution of the Lutheran Church–Canada, operates on the 
campus of Brock University. 

McMaster University's Michael G. DeGroote School of Medicine opened a satellite campus in St. Catharines in 
September 2008. The Hamilton, Ontario-based university educates 28 first-year medical students in local hospitals 
within the city. 

Ridley College, located near the city's downtown core in the Western Hill neighbourhood, is a distinguished co-
educational boarding and day school. It was established as a boys' school in 1889, and became co-educational in 1973. 

A campus of the Niagara College of Applied Arts and Technology is located near the city's east end. Niagara College is 
the only fully licensed teaching winery in Canada. The "Niagara College Teaching Winery" (or NCT for short) has 
created award winning wines. Niagara College has also taken home various medals from international wine 
competitions such as "Cuvee", "The Ontario Wine Awards" and "The Finger Lakes International Competition" to name 
a few. The school's Horticultural Campus was once located on 360 Niagara Street in the 1970s-1990s but has since 
been relocated to Niagara-on-the-Lake. One of its greatest teachers, R. Roy Forster, was recognized with the Order of 
Canada on 14 April 1999, for his work in creating the VanDusen Botanical Garden in Vancouver, British Columbia. 

The District School Board of Niagara (DSBN), responsible for managing a school system of nearly 119 faculties, contains 
6 Secondary Schools in the city of St. Catharines, Laura Secord, Sir Winston Churchill, Governor Simcoe, St. Catharines 
Collegiate, Eden, and the DSBN Academy. 

The Niagara Catholic District School Board (NCDSB) manages 61 elementary and secondary schools within the Niagara 
Region and operates 3 Catholic Secondary Schools within the city, Holy Cross, Denis Morris Catholic High School, 
and St. Francis. 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Communities and Development: 

St. Catharines' development history has resulted in a number of unique and distinct communities within the city. 
The historical area of St. Catharines consisted of nothing more than what is now the downtown core, with the 
remaining land being part of Louth Township on the west and Grantham Township on the east. St. Catharines 
continued to steadily grow through the late 19th and early 20th centuries, eventually annexing land to the 
southwest that would become Western Hill and Old Glenridge, and to the east and north that would collectively 
become the central part of St. Catharines. In addition to the growth of St. Catharines, the Town of Merritton and 
the Town of Port Dalhousie existed as separate municipalities to the South and North of the city, each slowly 
growing their own residential base. 

Along with the rest of Ontario, St. Catharines experienced explosive growth after World War II. St. Catharines 
continued to annex Grantham Township as development continued, including the large swaths of land to the 
north known now as "The North End". St. Catharines would also absorb Merritton and Port Dalhousie in 1961, 
making them part of the city. During this time, St. Catharines nearly tripled in population. 

With the formation of the Regional Municipality of Niagara in 1970, the portion of Louth Township east of Fifteen 
Mile Creek was transferred to the City of St. Catharines. This included the eastern portion of the Hamlet 
of Rockway, as well as the Hamlet of Power Glen. The few remaining portions of Grantham Township in the 
Northeast corner of the area, including Port Weller, were also transferred to the city. With the new Louth 
Township lands belonging to the city, St. Catharines would begin two developments in the west end — 
Martindale in 1983, and Vansickle in 1987. These developments are nearing completion. There was also a push to 
continue further expansion to the west in the late 1990s, but this has since been halted by Ontario 
Greenbelt legislation. 

Trails System: 

The city's trail system offers over 90 kilometres (55 mi) of accessible pathways that are suitable for walking, 
jogging, cycling, hiking and cross-country skiing. 

 Bruce Trail - Canada's oldest and longest hiking trail, following the Niagara Escarpment (designated as 
a UNESCO World Biosphere Reserve site) from Niagara-on-the-Lake to Tobermory. A 20-kilometre (12 mi) 
section with associated side trails winds through St. Catharines passing by places such as the Morningstar 
Mill. 

 Merritt Trail — a segmented 11 km (6.8 mi) trail that passes many of the old sections of the second Welland 
Canal and remnants of its locks. 

 Terry Fox Fitness Trail — named after Canadian hero Terry Fox, a 1.5 km trail that runs along the 
former interurban railway right-of-way through central St. Catharines. Placed strategically along the Terry Fox 
Fitness Trail are six exercise stations of Dynatract Fitness Course, with instruction boards at each station. 

 Waterfront Trail - follows the shore of Lake Ontario, connecting communities from Niagara-on-the-Lake 
to Brockville. The Port Dalhousie portion of the trail is a major highlight. 

 Welland Canals Parkway - provides an uninterrupted 9-kilometre (5.6 mi) paved path for non-motorized 
traffic, along the western-side of the scenic Welland Canal. It links with the waterfront trails of Niagara-on-
the-Lake and Port Colbourne, and the Niagara Parkway to create the Greater Niagara Circle Route, measuring 
approximately 150 kilometres (90 mi). An equestrian trail is located on the east-side of the canal and is part 
of the parkway. 

…….from wikipedia 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

     



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

   

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 


